FLAT BELLY SMOOTHES

Michael Redson

DISCLAIMER AND COPYRIGHT NOTICE

No part of this publication may be reproduced in any form or by any means, including print, scan, photocopy, or otherwise, without the prior written permission of the copyright owner. The author has attempted to present information that is as accurate and concrete as possible. The author is not a medical doctor and does not write in the capacity of a health professional. Any medical decision should be made with the advice and care of your doctor. The author will not be held responsible for any injury or loss incurred by the reader through the practice of any information contained in this book.

The author does not mention the fact that new studies are constantly being carried out, the information in this book was as accurate as possible at the time of writing, but given the changing nature of the subject, the author hopes that the reader will be able to appreciate the basics that have been addressed in this book.

Despite every effort to verify each piece of information provided in this publication, the author assumes no responsibility for any error, omission, or misinterpretation of the subject matter in this book.

Again, please note that the help or advice provided here does not replace medical advice. You agree to use some or all of the information given in this book at your own risk. The author will not be responsible for any injury that may result from putting into practice any advice given in this book.

If you are under medical treatment or have any doubt about the advice given here, please consult your doctor as soon as possible.

10 **Flat Belly** Metabolic Drinks



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION
1 TEAS & JUICES
1.1 GINGER & LEMON TEA7
1.2 FAT BURNING JUICE10
1.3 SLIMMING FLORAL TEA
1.4 "THY FAT SHALL MELT" DRINK15
1.5 "PEACEFUL SLEEP" TEA
2 SMOOTHIES
2.1 SPICY CARROT & APPLE SMOOTHIE2
2.2 ULTRA GREEN SMOOTHIE
2.3 "VITALITY" COFFEE SMOOTHIE
2.4 POST-WORKOUT SMOOTHIE
2.5 "NIGHT NIGHT" DINER SMOOTHIE
REFERENCES

INTRODUCTION

There's a reason why some people strongly disapprove of industrial juices, sodas and similar drinks while dieting. More often than not, these drinks are absolutely loaded with sugar. And when I say loaded, I mean it, you could easily call them "diabetes" drinks. For example, your average juice or soda contains seven squares of sugar. Yes, I said seven.

Let's move on, shall we?

Basically, most commercially available drinks are either sugar bombs or totally devoid of any nutritional substance (or alternatively, both). In addition, diet versions aren't necessarily healthier – often, they contain artificial sweeteners that are known carcinogens (aspartame comes to mind).

And last but not least, most industrial juices aren't super healthy options either – once, devoid of the fibre of the fruit, a juice is basically just lots of sugar and some nutrients. Also, heavy processing doesn't leave much nutrients.

So, it's best to avoid most of these altogether.

However, that doesn't mean you can only drink water, unsweetened tea or coffee!

If you can control what you put in your teas, smoothies and even, some juices; you can easily transform them into very nutritious drinks. Moreover, weight loss wise, you can also control the amount of carbs (aka sugar) that's in them.

That's why we have created this special weight loss e-book containing 10 easy, tasty and nutritious drinks. Also, some of the smoothies can be used as a meal replacement (if it is, it will be mentioned).

The following recipes can help you lose weight and after your desired goal achieved, they can also help you maintain your weight loss.

One of the main benefits of these recipes, it's how practical and easy they are to make. You can make yourself a nutritious drink with our very simple directions and then, you can go back to your life. Afterwards, you won't be tempted by anything naughty since your belly is already full of healthy deliciousness.

Because, not only these recipes are great for weight loss, they also happen to be tasty treats!

We weren't going to make an e-book about drinks packing healthy ingredients but disregarding their flavour. Pleasure is a very important thing when dieting. Actually, let me correct this...it's fundamental when dieting!

You are already restricting your calorie intake. Consequently, the last thing you need is restricting pleasure. This is how the yo-yo effect works: you do some very drastic diet for X time and then, you put back all the weight you have lost and then, some!

Therefore, we have concocted these 10 wonderful drinks, that will help you lose weight stress-free! Finally, they contain easily available ingredients and they won't drain your bank account either.

Enjoy!

Ginger & Lemon Tea

A refreshing tea to boost your metabolism and immune system

Ingredients (for one tea):

- 1 inch | fresh ginger root (don't peel it)
- 1 or 2 tablespoons | freshly squeezed lemon juice
- 1 cup | water
- Optional: 1 tablespoon | raw honey (unpasteurized) or for a lower carb option: add 1 teaspoon of erythritol or xylitol* (both are alcohol sugars that aren't entirely absorbed by our bodies and are safe to use)
- * Xylitol can have laxative effects, use it sparingly.

Directions:

Gather all the ingredients and start grating the ginger into your container (you can also mince it with a knife). Pour 1 cup of boiling water over the ginger. Let it steep for 5 minutes.

Meanwhile, put the honey (or sweetener of your choice) and lemon juice in a large mug.

Strain the ginger infusion into the mug. Stir the mix and add a little honey or sweetener, if needed.

For best results, drink it in the morning while fasting (before breakfast). If you have a relative suffering from diabetes or are at risk, this drink is a must to maintain healthy blood sugar levels.

Discover the Amazing Benefits of

Ginger

Ginger is a root native from South-east Asia, it's commonly found in foods and medicine all over the

world. Many active ingredients in this root can promote health and wellness.

Research is still young when it comes to ginger but some interesting discoveries have been made.

For instance, ginger is an excellent anti-inflammatory. Inflammation is a body function of selfpreservation. However, germs, pollution, some chemicals and a bad lifestyle can result into too much inflammation. And this is something that really needs to be avoided or dealt with, before it can cause serious issues.

Ginger is also an excellent antioxidant which may help to prevent neurodegenerative diseases, cancer, heart disease and slow down...some symptoms of ageing.

And last but not least, ginger can balance blood sugar. For example, a study found that ginger improved fasting blood sugar in diabetics. (1)

While another study showed that ginger was effective to reduce "bad" cholesterol (LDL) and triglycerides in rats fed a high-fat diet. Thus, this drink is a daily must if you are doing a ketogenic diet. (2)

Finally, ginger may help the process of weight loss, combined with a good diet and an active lifestyle. Several studies found that ginger suppressed appetite, preventing you from overeating. (3,4)

Lemon

Lemon is a basic staple in most kitchens and an extremely versatile fruit. It's a popular ingredient in many recipes, including drinks and cocktails.

As you might already know, lemon is an excellent source of vitamin C (as long as it's not been overheated) – which has antibacterial and antiviral properties. Consequently, lemon is your friend to boost your immune system.

But a simple yellow lemon can do much more for you. The combination of this sunshine fruit and

water can boost your metabolic rate, which may help you shed some extra pounds!

Studies have shown that lemon can reduce weight gain, offset the negative effects of high blood sugar and improve insulin resistance. (5,6)

Fat Burning Juice

Keep fat and diabetes at bay, & promotes good sleep

Ingredients (for one juice):

- 1 | pink grapefruit
- 2 | oranges
- 1 bunch | mint
- 1 cup | kale

Directions:

Peel your grapefruit and oranges. You can then either put all ingredients through a juicer, blender or a food processor. That's it!

Drink this juice on a busy (active) day for a boost of energy (only once). For extra freshness, don't hesitate to add some ice. Avoid drinking this juice in the evening.

Discover the Fresh Benefits of

Grapefruit

Grapefruit is a citrus known for its sour and slightly sweet taste. It contains an abundance of nutrients, antioxidants and fibre – while being a very tasty low carb/low calorie fruit.

A single medium sized grapefruit is about 50 calories and only contains 13 grams of carbs. It's loaded with Vitamin C and A, and provides some of the recommended intake of potassium, thiamine, folate and magnesium.

Research shows that fibre rich fruits are beneficial to induce a feeling of fullness. $(\underline{7})$

A randomized study on individuals who suffered from insulin resistance and metabolic syndrome showed significant results... Some participants were given a grapefruit daily for 12 weeks. Others had either placebo capsules, grapefruit juice or capsule. The group who had fresh grapefruit lost 1.6 kg, the grapefruit juice group lost 1.5 kg, the grapefruit capsule group lost 1.1 kg and the placebo one lost 0.3 kg.

Moreover, the study showed that the grapefruit groups all had significant reductions of insulin levels compared to the placebo group. (<u>8</u>)

Clearly, grapefruit is a great addition to the family of "anti-diabetic" foods. This fruit is a must in your weight loss plan and well, just a must... for healthy eating.

Mint

Mint is one of these plants that we don't even question anymore – it can be easily bought anywhere and it's highly refreshing. Besides the obvious, mint, also known as *Mentha*, has dozens of species and has been widely used as a medicinal plant for centuries.

Mint contains vitamins A, B2 and C, lots of fibre, potassium, calcium, zinc, magnesium and copper.

This fresh herb does more than packing a nutritional punch, it also has very interesting properties.

Mint boosts digestion, helps with bloating and turns food into energy more efficiently. Meaning: less fat around your waste, more for your body to function well. (9)

But that's not all, these crafty little green leaves heighten mental alertness and memory. A study found that mint flavoured gum chewers had higher memory retention and mental alertness than those who didn't chew them. (<u>10</u>)

Kale

Kale is definitely a food that deserves to be called a superfood. A single cup of kale provides twice the daily recommended amount of Vitamin A, six times of vitamin K, 134% of vitamin C and a good quantity of vitamin B6, manganese, calcium, copper, potassium and magnesium to boot!

Moreover, kale is a very low calorie food, clocking a total of 33 calories per cup. Additionally, it's packed with antioxidants, which makes it a great tool to prevent many diseases.

But there's a couple of other reasons behind including kale into this juice...

First, kale isn't necessarily something everyone loves, the other ingredients in this juice are great to balance the flavour of kale and making it more palatable for those who aren't fans.

Secondly, kale is an excellent source of tryptophan. Tryptophan is an essential amino acid, which happens to be a precursor of serotonin – the "happiness" hormone. By adding more tryptophan-rich foods in your diet, you will balance your sleeping habits and stabilise your mood more easily.

Studies have shown that low tryptophan levels are associated with lower moods and cognitive impairments. Upping your consumption of this amino acid boosts stress management, sleep, mood and memory. (<u>11</u>)

Slimming Floral Tea

Lose weight while pleasuring your taste buds

Ingredients (for 1 litre):

- 1 tablespoon | white tea
- 1 tablespoon | dried hibiscus flowers
- optional (per cup): ½ teaspoon of erythritol or xylitol*, or 1 teaspoon of raw honey
- * Xylitol can have laxative effects, use it sparingly.

Directions:

Boil 1 litre of water. Meanwhile, add the white tea and hibiscus into your teapot or container of choice. Pour the water and let it steep for 10 minutes. Drain and enjoy! To balance the bitterness of hibiscus, you can add a sweetener or 1 teaspoon of raw honey.

You can drink as many cups of this tea as you'd like. However, avoid drinking it in the evening...if you value your sleep.

Discover the Elegant Benefits of

Hibiscus

Hibiscus tea uses the flower of the plant *Hibiscus Sabdariffa*. It is often consumed as a medicinal drink, especially in Africa. This tea has a deep ruby red colour and a tart taste. Depending on personal preference, it can be consumed either hot or cold.

Hibiscus is loaded with antioxidants - molecules that prevent cell damage and thus, may prevent

disease.

However, one of its most impressive benefits may be it's blood pressure lowering properties. In one study, participants with high blood pressure were given either hibiscus tea or a placebo. After six weeks, the hibiscus group had a significant decrease of blood pressure compared to the placebo group. (12)

Another study showed that hibiscus tea was effective to increase "good" HDL cholesterol and, decrease "bad" LDL cholesterol and triglycerides. (<u>13</u>)

Finally, hibiscus seems to have weight loss properties too! In one study, researchers gave hibiscus or a placebo to their 36 overweight participants. After 12 weeks, the hibiscus extract had reduced the body weight and body fat of the non-placebo group. (<u>14</u>)

White Tea

White, green and black tea all come from the same plant: *Camellia Sinensis*. Different ways of processing the tea give them their unique aromas. When it comes to white tea, it's the least processed. Consequently, it contains far more antioxidants than its counterparts.

Not unlike green tea, white tea is rich in caffeine and in epigallocatechin gallate – or EGCG – a compound linked to fat burning. The combination of these two compounds seems to amplify their weight loss inducing efficiency. (<u>15</u>)

Additionally, it would seem that white tea could also lower the risk of insulin resistance. This phenomenon happens when the body stops responding to insulin (it's usually the result of a high carb/sugar diet). As a result, this condition can lead to chronic health conditions, such as type 2 diabetes, metabolic syndrome and heart disease. (<u>16</u>)

To further confirm this, several studies have found that the molecules contained in tea, such as polyphenols, were efficient to significantly reduce the risk of insulin resistance.

The research is still ongoing but this won't be the last time that we'll be hearing about the weight loss benefits of white tea or tea, in general.

"Thy Fat Shall Melt" Drink

A must to burn fat efficiently

Ingredients:

- 1 tablespoon | unfiltered "raw" apple cider vinegar
- 8 ounces or 0.24L | purified or distilled water
- 1 tablespoon | raw honey or sweetener of choice (erythritol, xylitol or stevia)

Directions:

Mix all ingredients thoroughly and drink it preferably while fasting, in the morning. You can halve the quantity of apple cider vinegar if your stomach is too sensitive.

It's highly advised to not exceed 2 tablespoons of apple cider vinegar daily and only 1 tablespoon should be taken at once.

Discover the Powerful Benefits of

Organic (Raw) Apple Cider Vinegar

Apple Cider Vinegar – or ACV – is undoubtedly the most popular "healthy" vinegar these days. And unlike some products, most health related claims happen to be actually true and backed with solid science.

ACV is made through two processes. First, crushed apples are exposed to yeast, which allows the fermentation of the sugar they contain and allows to turn them into alcohol.

Then, bacteria is added to the alcohol, which will continue the process of fermentation and turn

alcohol into acetic acid – the main active ingredient in vinegar.

ACV has many beneficial properties. One that is of great interest is its numerous benefits for blood sugar and insulin levels.

Apple cider vinegar improves insulin sensitivity (during a high carbohydrate meal) and also, significantly reduces blood sugar. (<u>17</u>)

Numerous studies have reported very similar results.

But that's not all, it seems that vinegar is a great weight loss ally too. One study has striking results when it comes to the fat burning properties of ACV.

175 obese participants consumed apple cider vinegar daily without changing their diet. The group who had 1 tablespoon daily lost an average of 2.6 pounds (1.2 kg) and the group who had 2 tablespoons lost an average of 3.7 pounds (1.7 kg). (<u>18</u>)

While this study was conducted over 3 months, it shows that the addition of only one ingredient can have a noticeable effect on weight loss.

Should you add a healthy diet, an active lifestyle and this addition becomes a fantastic result!

Raw Honey (aka Organic Unpasteurized Honey)

Honey is more than a delicious sweet nectar that exalts our taste buds. It's also a powerhouse of nutrition and has many health benefits.

However, not all honeys are created equal. To get the most out of this natural wonder, it has to be processed as little as possible. In order to ensure that, try to find a small organic producer or find a reputable brand with good traceability.

Honey is a good source of antioxidants, it has antibacterial and antifungal properties, and can also be used to heal wounds! For instance, some medical establishments will use Manuka honey to boost

tissue regeneration.

Moreover, a very good honey can help you lose weight. It's a very potent prebiotic, which means that it can nourish the good bacteria that inhabits your intestines.

New research has shown that a healthy intestinal flora (aka gut bacteria) is essential, not only to lose weight but also, to keep the weight off! (<u>19</u>)

Nevertheless, honey still contains fructose – which will end up as glucose in our bodies. And as such, if you are planing on losing weight, eat it in moderation. One or two tablespoons daily tops!

"Peaceful Sleep" Tea

A soothing tea for a good night of sleep

Ingredients:

- 1 tablespoon | rooibos
- 1 teaspoon | chamomile
- 10 ml (per mug) | unpasteurized milk or organic soy milk
- Optional: 1 tablespoon | raw honey (unpasteurized) or 1 teaspoon of stevia, erythritol or xylitol*
- * Xylitol can have laxative effects, use it sparingly.

Directions:

Boil 1 litre of water. Meanwhile, add the rooibos and chamomile into your teapot or container of choice. Pour the water and let it steep for 3 to 5 minutes. Drain and serve in a normal sized mug with unpasteurized milk or soy milk, and if needed, a teaspoon (per mug) of the sweetener of your choice.

Discover the Relaxing Benefits of ...

Rooibos

Rooibos tea comes from the leaves of a shrub called *Aspalathus linearis*, usually found on the western coast of South Africa.

This tea isn't related to green, black or white tea – rooibos is an herbal tea and it doesn't contain any caffeine. However, it's packed full of antioxidants, which is a must to fight against ageing and disease.

One of these antioxidants, aspalathin would seem to have anti-diabetic properties. A study in mice found that aspalathin lowered insulin resistance and balanced blood glucose. (20)

If you have low iron levels, rooibos might be a drink of choice, as it doesn't contain much tannins (unlike actual green or black tea). Tannins interfere with the absorption of some nutrients, like iron.

It's important to know that rooibos is very safe. Nevertheless, some very rare side effects have been reported when drinking large quantities.

Some compounds of rooibos seem to stimulate oestrogen production (a female sex hormone). So, if you have hormonal issues you may want to be careful with it. (<u>21</u>)

Chamomile

Chamomile tea is a popular drink for its numerous health properties. One of the most known, of course, is it's light sedative benefits – making it an ideal tea to unwind at the end of the day.

Chamomile flowers come from an herb that belongs to the Asteraceae family. Its flowers are dried and then, infused in hot water to make tea.

This relaxing plant contains a very healthy load of antioxidants – which lowers the risk of several diseases, such as heart disease and cancer.

When it comes to the benefits of chamomile as a sleeping aid, several studies have found that chamomile improved sleep quality, reduced insomnia and lowered symptoms of depression. (22, 23)

Why did we include a sleeping tea for your weight loss?

Healthy sleeping patterns and enough sleep is essential for your body to balance hormones and "reset" for the following day. Often, sleep deprived people report being hungrier – which is the result of unbalanced ghrelin and leptin, two hormones playing a crucial role in the control of hunger. Moreover, a good night sleep (on the regular) is essential for healthy mental health and stress management. Two factors that are paramount to keep on shedding weight consistently.

Spicy Carrot & Apple Smoothie

A filling smoothie that will keep you going!

Ingredients (for one smoothie):

- 1 | organic carrot
- 1 | organic apple
- 1 inch | ginger

Directions:

Cut your carrot and apple in smaller pieces (only peel them if they aren't organic). However, do peel your ginger – you can adjust the quantity used depending on your taste.

Then, you can either put everything through a juicer or a food processor. Enjoy straight away, while it's fresh!

Drink this smoothie on an active day for a boost of energy (only once). For extra freshness, don't hesitate to add some ice.

Discover the Sweet Benefits of

Apples

Usually, apples are a basic fruit you will find in most kitchens and year round in any supermarket. You probably have heard the famous "an apple a day, keeps the doctor away." Well, maybe it would be more appropriate to say "an apple a day, keeps the pounds away"!

Apples are essentially water. In fact, a single average size apple contains about 85% water. Foods

that are water-rich are crucial in any diet, as they are quite filling.

It's been shown that low energy foods – such as apples – boost satiety, reduce overall calorie intake and promote weight loss. (24)

Moreover, water reduces the energy density of other foods. Which means that water is 0 calories and fruits (or vegetables) with high water content tend to be very rich in dietary fibre.

An apple contains approximately 4 grams of fibre. By making sure, you eat enough fibre daily, you will increase your chances to attain a lower body weight and you will significantly reduce your risk of obesity. (25)

Additionally, apples have many other health benefits. They possess compounds that help balance blood sugar, they reduce the risk of heart disease and cancer, and apparently, they would seem to improve brain function!

Carrots

Carrots are a root vegetable that contains beta-carotene (an antioxidant that is converted into vitamin A), fibre, vitamin K, potassium and antioxidants. This common vegetable possesses numerous health properties. Carrots are a great weight loss food, they lower cholesterol levels and can improve eye health.

The water content of a carrot is usually between 85 and 95%. Not unlike apples, carrots are a low energy density food. The rest of the carrot is essentially carbohydrates and fibre.

Carrots are very filling and are particularly beneficial for people who watch their blood sugar levels, as they rank low on the glycemic index – meaning they raise blood sugar slowly and in a balanced fashion. Giving the person who eats them, regular energy levels throughout the day.

The fibre present in carrots, such as pectin are soluble fibres. They can feed the good bacteria in the intestines (which is important for weight loss as I mentioned it earlier). Also, some soluble fibre can

effectively lower blood cholesterol. (26)

Finally, carrots pack a punch when it comes to nutrients. They are a good source of numerous vitamins and minerals, such as vitamin A, Biotin (a vitamin B that plays an essential role in protein and fat metabolism), vitamin K1, potassium and vitamin B6. In addition, they contain many substances possessing powerful antioxidant effects.

Ultra Green Smoothie

Way tastier and prettier than slime!

Ingredients (for one smoothie):

- ¼ cup | pineapple
- 1| orange
- 1 cup | raw spinach
- 1 cup | unsweetened almond milk

Directions:

Peel your pineapple and orange. Put all ingredients into a food processor. Drink it quickly after you've made it. Enjoy!

This smoothie is ideal in the morning or as a snack – if you need a bit of a boost, you can also eat it with a small handful of nuts. For extra freshness, don't hesitate to add some ice. Avoid drinking this smoothie in the evening.

Discover the Benefits of

Pineapple

Pineapple is a tasty tropical fruit that originated in South America and was named by early European explorers because of its resemblance to pine cones.

It provides a good amount of vitamin C, copper, manganese, vitamin B6, thiamin, potassium and folate – it's also rich in antioxidants and enzymes. In fact, one group of digestive enzymes has very

promising properties: bromelain.

Bromelain is effective to improve digestion by helping breaking down foods (especially protein) and consequently, food is better absorbed. (<u>27</u>)

Moreover, bromelain may be useful to reduce inflammation and speed up muscular recovery. Thus, pineapple is a great ally before or after a strenuous workout! (<u>28</u>)

Nonetheless, don't overeat this delicious fruit as it has quite a high carb content!

Spinach

Spinach isn't just a tasty green vegetable that can be incorporated into nearly every dish. It also has a variety of healthy benefits. For starters, it's loaded with nutrients and antioxidants – such as vitamins A, C and K1, folic acid, iron, calcium, magnesium and more.

Eating this leafy green on the regular can benefit eye health, reduce oxidative stress and inflammation, promote heart health, lower the risk of cancer and reduce blood pressure. (29)

In addition, spinach is mostly fibre with a very low carb content (about 0.4%). Making it a great veggie in a weight loss diet – or any diet actually!

By adding spinach into your slimming journey, you will easily boost your nutrient intake and energy levels.

Moreover, spinach is quite filling which is essential to resist temptations....

"Vitality" Coffee Smoothie

A tasty smoothie that will keep you full and alert

Ingredients (for one smoothie):

- 1 tablespoon | high quality ground coffee
- 1/2 cup | brewed coffee
- 1/2 | ripe banana
- ¾ cup | unsweetened almond milk or any other unsweetened milk
- 1/2 teaspoon | vanilla extract
- ½ cup | ice
- optional: a little raw honey or sweetener

Directions:

Mix all ingredients in a food processor or a blender until smooth. Add more ice if it's too liquid or more milk if it's to thick. Enjoy while it's fresh!

You can drink this smoothie for breakfast or as a snack (active day). Eat a few nuts with it (almonds or Brazil nuts preferably) for a full meal or alternatively, you can add a tablespoon of peanut or almond butter into your smoothie. Avoid this smoothie in the evening.

Discover the Powerful Benefits of

Coffee

Alongside tea, coffee is one of the world's most popular drinks. It's high in antioxidants and nutrients. But when it comes to weight loss, one word comes to mind: caffeine!

Indeed, coffee is mainly known as a stimulant, used for a quick pick me up. After drinking coffee, caffeine is absorbed into the bloodstream and travels to your brain. Once there, it blocks an inhibitory neurotransmitter called adenosine.

Afterwards, the quantity of other neurotransmitters such as dopamine and norepinephrine increases, leading to a higher firing of neurons. (<u>30</u>)

In other words... caffeine improves memory, mood, reaction time, vigilance, energy levels and overall mental function.

On the weight loss front, caffeine is a great fat burning compound. Studies have showed that caffeine can boost metabolism by up to 11%. And while this is impressive, the leaner you are, the more efficient it becomes. In fact, caffeine increases fat burning up to 29% in lean people! (<u>31</u>)

Another health benefit that ought to be mentioned is how caffeine can significantly boost physical performance. On average, caffeine can improve physical performance by 12%. (<u>32</u>)

Banana

Bananas are not only delicious, they also happen to very nutritious and versatile. They are native from South-east Asia and are grown in most tropical parts of the world.

This gorgeous yellow fruit contains a good amount of fibre and antioxidants. Moreover, it's a good source of potassium, vitamins B6 and C, magnesium, copper and manganese.

However, one banana has an average of 24 grams. Thus, for weight loss purposes, banana shouldn't be overeaten. Nonetheless, they still are very useful to lose weight...when eaten in moderation!

For instance, bananas contain pectin and starch that can moderate blood sugar levels after meals and reduce appetite. (33)

Furthermore, bananas are a low calorie food, an average one clocks about 100 calories. Considering how filling and nutritious they are, it's no surprise that bananas are associated to lower body weight and weight loss. (<u>34</u>)

So, don't snob bananas but one banana daily is more than enough!

Post-Workout Smoothie

A delicious & healthy treat after a good workout

Ingredients (for one big smoothie or two medium sized ones):

- 1| banana
- 1 cup | chopped strawberries
- 1 cup | unsweetened vegetal milk or organic milk
- 1 tablespoon | peanut or raw almond butter

Directions:

Peel your banana. Place in a blender (or a food processor) and blend all ingredients until smooth. Pour into your mug or glass, and enjoy!

Drink this smoothie once a day, if you are extremely active or after a workout to replenish your fuel. For extra freshness, don't hesitate to add some ice. Avoid drinking this juice in the evening.

Discover the Yummy Benefits of

Strawberries

Strawberry, as we know it, is an hybrid from two wild species found in North America and Chile. This delicious and juicy fruit is an excellent source of vitamin C and manganese, while also providing a good amount of potassium and folate.

These gorgeous red berries contain a whooping 91% of water, about 7.7% of carbohydrates and a

minor amount of fat and protein.

Furthermore, strawberries are loaded with antioxidants and compounds that are beneficial for heart health and to balance blood sugar levels. (<u>35</u>)

Studies have also found that berries are useful to reduce "bad" LDL cholesterol and boost "good" HDL cholesterol, and lower blood pressure. (<u>36</u>)

Bottom line, strawberries are low in calories, healthy, nutritious and lower cholesterol, blood pressure, inflammation, blood sugar levels, the risk of cancer and they are delicious.

What's not to like?

Almond Butter

So why choose almond butter over a delicious and decadent peanut butter?

Frankly, if we only base ourselves on nutritional value, both peanut and almond butter are quite similar. However, almond butter contains more vitamins, minerals and fibre.

And almond butter has other cards to play...

Almond butter contains less saturated fat (peanut butter contains twice as much) – which shouldn't be eaten in large quantities to avoid increasing your risk of cardiovascular disease.

Moreover, almond butter contains three times as much vitamin E, twice as much iron and SEVEN times more calcium than the mighty peanut butter.

Even if nuts are a high calorie food, they also happen to be extremely nutritious and nut butter is no different.

Research has shown that people who eat nuts regularly are less likely to have type 2 diabetes or heart disease. (<u>37</u>)

Finally, nut butters are very filling, a little goes a long way!

"Night Night" Diner Smoothie

Boosts your mood and improves your nights

Ingredients (for one smoothie):

- ½ cup | kale
- ¹/₂ cup | natural organic yogurt
- 1/2 | banana
- 1 | kiwi
- 1 teaspoon | raw and unsweetened almond butter
- 1 teaspoon | ground flax seeds
- ¼ cup | unsweetened almond milk

Directions:

Peel your kiwi and banana. Blend all ingredients until smooth and drink straight away.

Discover the Benefits of... Relaxing Foods

I mentioned tryptophan in the "Fat Burning Juice", which contains an ingredient with this amino acid: kale. Basically, this smoothie is a combination of kale and other ingredients, promoting a good night of sleep and overall, a better mood.

Let's have a quick look at these other "chill" ingredients!

Kiwi

Kiwis pack a lot of flavour and they aren't shy when it comes to health benefits either. They are an excellent source of vitamins C, K and E, potassium and folate. Moreover, they are loaded with many

antioxidants and fibre. However, do peel it before eating it!

Funnily, I did mention earlier that "one apple a day, keeps the doctor away". Well, kiwis seem to be far more efficient to lower blood pressure than the single apple a day. (<u>38</u>)

Long term, this means that kiwis reduce the risk of strokes, heart disease and heart attacks.

Finally, kiwis are great to aid digestion, they contain plenty of fibre and an interesting enzyme: actinidin. This proteolytic enzyme greatly improves the digestion of proteins. (<u>39</u>)

Flax Seeds

Here's another food that easily deserves to be called a superfood!

Flax seeds are PACKED with nutrients. A single tablespoon of ground flax seeds contains the following: omega-3 fatty acids, vitamins B1, B6 and folate, calcium, iron, magnesium, phosphorus and potassium.

Also, this little seeds are rich in dietary fibre: soluble and insoluble fibre. As such, this duo of fibre is a powerhouse to improve bowel movements. Moreover, soluble fibre slows down digestion rate, which has been shown to aid balance blood sugar levels and reduce cholesterol. (<u>40</u>)

A study found that the addition of 25 grams of flax seeds daily (in a beverage) reduced feelings of hunger. (<u>41</u>)

But that's not all, flax seeds may also be useful to promote healthy blood pressure and blood sugar levels.

So, add a little crunch or some ground nuttiness to your diet!

Natural Yogurt

Plain yogurt is made by bacterial fermentation of milk. This bacteria ferments lactose, which is the sugar found in milk. Then, the process produces lactic acid and this compound causes milk proteins to curdle. And that's how yogurt is made!

However, not all yogurts are good for you. Go for plain yogurts and if possible, organic ones. Always

check labels to avoid sugar, artificial flavours and colourants.

Now, let's explore its health benefits.

Yogurt contains a lot of calcium (obviously) but that's not all. It's a brilliant source of B vitamins, phosphorus, magnesium and potassium. Vitamins and minerals that are essential against heart disease, regulating blood pressure, metabolism and bone health.

Lastly, an organic yogurt of quality will contain effective probiotics. These probiotics will boost digestive health and are great to ensure a thriving intestinal flora. And as such, they will help you to make sure you keep the weight off once you lose it! (<u>42</u>)

REFERENCES

(1) The Effects of Ginger on Fasting Blood Sugar, Hemoglobin A1c, Apolipoprotein B, Apolipoprotein A-I and Malondialdehyde in Type 2 Diabetic Patients. Nafiseh Khandouzi, Farzad Shidfar, Asadollah Rajab, Tayebeh Rahideh, Payam Hosseini and Mohsen Mir Taherif. Iran J Pharm Res. 2015.

(2) Effect of Two Ginger Varieties on Arginase Activity in Hypercholesterolemic Rats.

Akinyemi AJ, Oboh G, Ademiluyi AO, Boligon AA, Athayde ML. J Acupunct Meridian Stud. 2016. (3) Anti-obesity action of gingerol: effect on lipid profile, insulin, leptin, amylase and lipase in male obese rats induced by a high-fat diet. Saravanan G, Ponmurugan P, Deepa MA, Senthilkumar B. J Sci Food Agric. 2014.

(4) Ginger consumption enhances the thermic effect of food and promotes feelings of satiety without affecting metabolic and hormonal parameters in overweight men: A pilot study. Muhammad S. Mansour, Yu-Ming Ni, Amy L. Roberts, Michael Kelleman, Arindam RoyChoudhury and Marie-Pierre St-Onge. Metabolism. 2012.

(5) Effect of citrus flavonoids, naringin and naringenin, on metabolic syndrome and their mechanisms of action. Alam MA, Subhan N, Rahman MM, Uddin SJ, Reza HM, Sarker SD. Adv Nutr. 2014.

(6) Lemon Polyphenols Suppress Diet-induced Obesity by Up-Regulation of mRNA Levels of the Enzymes Involved in beta-Oxidation in Mouse White Adipose Tissue. Fukuchi Y, Hiramitsu M, Okada M, Hayashi S, Nabeno Y, Osawa T, Naito M. J Clin Biochem Nutr. 2008.

(7) Dietary fibres in the regulation of appetite and food intake. Importance of viscosity.

Kristensen M, Jensen MG. Appetite. 2011.

(8) The effects of grapefruit on weight and insulin resistance: relationship to the metabolic syndrome. Fujioka K, Greenway F, Sheard J, Ying Y. J Med Food. 2006.

(9) In vitro influence of spices and spice-active principles on digestive enzymes of rat pancreas and small intestine. Ramakrishna Rao R, Platel K, Srinivasan K. Nahrung. 2003.

(10) Effects of chewing gum on mood, learning, memory and performance of an intelligence test. Smith A. Nutr Neurosci. 2009.

(11) Influence of Tryptophan and Serotonin on Mood and Cognition with a Possible Role of the Gut-Brain

Axis. Trisha A. Jenkins, Jason C. D. Nguyen, Kate E. Polglaze and Paul P. Bertrand. Nutrients. 2016. (12) Hibiscus sabdariffa L. tea (tisane) lowers blood pressure in prehypertensive and mildly hypertensive adults. McKay DL, Chen CY, Saltzman E, Blumberg JB. J Nutr. 2010.

(13) Effects of sour tea (Hibiscus sabdariffa) on lipid profile and lipoproteins in patients with type II diabetes. Mozaffari-Khosravi H, Jalali-Khanabadi BA, Afkhami-Ardekani M, Fatehi F. J Altern Complement Med. 2009.

(14) Hibiscus sabdariffa extract inhibits obesity and fat accumulation, and improves liver steatosis in humans. Chang HC, Peng CH, Yeh DM, Kao ES, Wang CJ. Food Funct. 2014.

(15) White and green teas (Camellia sinensis var. sinensis): variation in phenolic, methylxanthine, and antioxidant profiles. Unachukwu UJ, Ahmed S, Kavalier A, Lyles JT, Kennelly EJ. J Food Sci. 2010.
(16) Effects of the aqueous extract of white tea (Camellia sinensis) in a streptozotocin-induced diabetes model of rats. Islam MS. Phytomedicine. 2011.

(17) Vinegar Ingestion at Bedtime Moderates Waking Glucose Concentrations in Adults With Well-Controlled Type 2 Diabetes. Andrea M. White and Carol S. Johnston. Diabetes Care. 2007.

(18) Vinegar intake reduces body weight, body fat mass, and serum triglyceride levels in obese Japanese subjects. Kondo T, Kishi M, Fushimi T, Ugajin S. Biosci Biotechnol Biochem. 2009.

(19) Connection Between BMI-Related Plasma Metabolite Profile and Gut Microbiota.

Ottosson F, Brunkwall L, Ericson U, Nilsson PM, Almgren P, Fernandez C, Melander O, Orho-Melander M. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 2018.

(20) Hypoglycemic effect of aspalathin, a rooibos tea component from Aspalathus linearis, in type 2 diabetic model db/db mice.Atsutoshi Kawano, Hiromichi Nakamura, Shu-ichi Hata, Miki Minakawa, Yutaka Miura, Kazumi Yagasaki. Science Direct. 2009.

(21) Occurrence and sensory perception of Z-2-(β -d-glucopyranosyloxy)-3-phenylpropenoic acid in rooibos (Aspalathus linearis). Joubert E, de Beer D, Malherbe CJ, Muller N, Bonnet SL, van der Westhuizen JH, Ferreira D.t. Food Chem. 2013.

(22) Chamomile: A herbal medicine of the past with bright future. Janmejai K Srivastava, Eswar Shankar and Sanjay Gupta. Mol Med Report. 2011.

(23) Effects of an intervention with drinking chamomile tea on sleep quality and depression in sleep disturbed postnatal women: a randomized controlled trial. Chang SM, Chen CH. J Adv Nurs. 2016. (24) Reductions in participation size and energy density of foods are additive and lead to sustained decrease

(24) Reductions in portion size and energy density of foods are additive and lead to sustained decreases in energy intake. Barbara J Rolls, Liane S Roeand Jennifer S Meengs. Am J Clin Nutr. 2006.

(25) Effects of Dietary Fiber and Its Components on Metabolic Health. James M. Lattimer and Mark D. Haub. Nutrients. 2010.

(26) Fiber and Prebiotics: Mechanisms and Health Benefits. Joanne Slavin. Nutrients. 2013.

(27) Comparative trial of Nutrizym in chronic pancreatic insufficiency. Knill-Jones RP, Pearce H, Batten J, Williams R. Br Med J. 1970.

(28) Protease supplementation improves muscle function after eccentric exercise. Buford TW, Cooke MB, Redd LL, Hudson GM, Shelmadine BD, Willoughby DS. Med Sci Sports Exerc. 2009.

(29) Flavonoid-rich apples and nitrate-rich spinach augment nitric oxide status and improve endothelial function in healthy men and women: a randomized controlled trial. Bondonno CP, Yang X, Croft KD, Considine MJ, Ward NC, Rich L, Puddey IB, Swinny E, Mubarak A, Hodgson JM. Free Radic Biol Med. 2012.

(30) Caffeine and the central nervous system: mechanisms of action, biochemical, metabolic and psychostimulant effects. Nehlig A, Daval JL, Debry G. Brain Res Brain Res Rev. 1992.

(31) Metabolic effects of caffeine in humans: lipid oxidation or futile cycling? Acheson KJ, Gremaud G, Meirim I, Montigon F, Krebs Y, Fay LB, Gay LJ, Schneiter P, Schindler C, Tappy L. Am J Clin Nutr. 2004.
(32) Effects of caffeine ingestion on exercise testing: a meta-analysis. Doherty M, Smith PM. Int J Sport Nutr Exerc Metab. 2004.

(33) Sustained pectin ingestion: effect on gastric emptying and glucose tolerance in non-insulin-dependent diabetic patients. Schwartz SE, Levine RA, Weinstock RS, Petokas S, Mills CA, Thomas FD. Am J Clin

Nutr. 1988.

(34) The effect of fiber on satiety and food intake: a systematic review. Clark MJ, Slavin JL.J Am Coll Nutr. 2013.

(35) The strawberry: composition, nutritional quality, and impact on human health. Giampieri F, Tulipani S, Alvarez-Suarez JM, Quiles JL, Mezzetti B, Battino M. Nutrition. 2012.

(36) Favorable effects of berry consumption on platelet function, blood pressure, and HDL cholesterol.Erlund I, Koli R, Alfthan G, Marniemi J, Puukka P, Mustonen P, Mattila P, Jula A. Am J Clin Nutr. 2008.(37) Health benefits of nuts in prevention and management of diabetes. Kendall CW, Esfahani A, Truan J, Srichaikul K, Jenkins DJ. Asia Pac J Clin Nutr. 2010.

(38) The effect of kiwifruit consumption on blood pressure in subjects with moderately elevated blood pressure: a randomized, controlled study. Svendsen M, Tonstad S, Heggen E, Pedersen TR, Seljeflot I, Bøhn SK, Bastani NE, Blomhoff R, Holme IM, Klemsdal TO. Blood Press. 2015.

(39) Actinidin enhances gastric protein digestion as assessed using an in vitro gastric digestion model. Kaur L, Rutherfurd SM, Moughan PJ, Drummond L, Boland MJ. J Agric Food Chem. 2010.

(40) Flaxseed dietary fibers lower cholesterol and increase fecal fat excretion, but magnitude of effect depend on food type. Kristensen M, Jensen MG, Aarestrup J, Petersen KE, Søndergaard L, Mikkelsen MS, Astrup A. Nutr Metab (Lond). 2012.

(41) Flaxseed dietary fiber supplements for suppression of appetite and food intake. Ibrügger S, Kristensen M, Mikkelsen MS, Astrup A. Appetite. 2012.

(42) Use of probiotics in gastrointestinal disorders: what to recommend? Elizabeth C. Verna. Therap Adv Gastroenterol. 2010.